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Pre-Tender Market Engagement

Local Government National Advertising Brokerage Scheme Feasibility Study

Authority: 	Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) (“the Authority).

Date Response required: 5pm 	(GMT) 18 April

1 [bookmark: h.bln3z1easf91][bookmark: _GoBack]PURPOSE
1.1 This Pre-Tender Market Engagement (PTME) seeks information in preparation for the potential procurement of a Supplier (from herein referred to as a “Potential Supplier”) to investigate the feasibility of setting up a national advertising brokerage scheme for Local Authorities, the aim of which would be to enable Local Authorities to generate additional revenues through advertising/marketing opportunities within their area. The purpose of this PTME is to:

1.1.1 help define the requirement;
1.1.2 help provide a better understanding of the feasibility of the requirement;
1.1.3 understand the best approach;
1.1.4 understand the capacity of the market to deliver and possible risks involved; and 
1.1.5 provide the market with an opportunity to ask questions, raise queries and any issues to be addressed at an early stage.
1.1.6 help identify indicative costs and timing for the proposed work.

1.2 The Authority shall maintain commercial confidentiality of information received during the PTME.  

2 INTRODUCTION
2.1 The government is keen to support Local Authorities to identify new ways to generate revenue. We, therefore, wish to commission a feasibility study into the possibility of creating a national advertising brokerage scheme through which councils could sell advertising and sponsorship opportunities and divide the surplus income fairly between themselves to reinvest in services.

2.2 This study would set out whether such a scheme would be feasible, whether there are already similar organisations or companies offering the same service, what the demand might be from Local Authorities for such a scheme, the potential for income to be raised, the form that such a scheme might take and any financial, legal or regulatory considerations which could impact on the operation of such a scheme.

3 HIGH LEVEL OUTLINE PROJECT OUTCOMES REQUIRED
3.1 The final output of the feasibility study should be a report that assesses the viability and value of a national advertising brokerage scheme for local authorities, including the risks and constraints of such a scheme. 

3.2 The report should make recommendations regarding the form that a scheme could take and assess whether it would meet the government’s objective of generating additional revenue for the local government sector.

3.3 As part of the work, the Authority would expect the Potential Supplier to engage with at least 10 Local Authorities and include coverage of each region of England.

3.4 The report should set out which types of activity have the potential to generate the greatest net revenue for councils, including (but not limited to):
3.4.1 Advertising on council websites 
3.4.2 Advertising in council publications 
3.4.3 Advertising on council vehicles 
3.4.4 Advertising on council infrastructure (e.g. bus stops, street furniture – where owned by the council) 
3.4.5 Outdoor advertising on council owned land
3.4.6 Advertising/sponsorship of other council assets (e.g. council buildings, parks, open spaces) 
3.4.7 Sponsorship of council-organised events (e.g. community festivals) 

3.5 The report should explore the existing activity in the market, the demand for an advertising brokerage scheme, the potential income of such a scheme, and ultimately what value the scheme could add. Considerations should include:
3.5.1 Whether there are any similar schemes or companies offering this service already.
3.5.2 An estimate of how many Local Authorities are already selling advertising to generate income.
3.5.3 Whether there are any common characteristics between Local Authorities currently selling advertising (e.g. geography, size, the types of activity).
3.5.4 How much net additional income those Local Authorities are raising per year.
3.5.5 An estimate of how many councils might be interested in participating in such a scheme.
3.5.6 Any existing means Local Authorities have which enable them, or could enable them, to raise revenue via advertising. 
3.5.7 Anything else deemed relevant. 

3.6 The report should also set out options for the form an advertising brokerage scheme could take. Considerations should include:
3.6.1 The practicalities, benefits and pitfalls of setting up a body to run the scheme. 
3.6.2 The practicalities, benefits and pitfalls of paying an organisation run the scheme.
3.6.3 The viability of any alternative options.
3.6.4 The costs of each of the above options.
3.6.5 How the scheme would work, including options for how surplus revenues might be shared between participating councils.
3.6.6 The constraints or barriers that would prevent a scheme from working effectively, including (but not limited to) planning policies, ownership, final, legal and regulatory considerations.

4 [bookmark: h.wl3fn6wsat4e][bookmark: h.nblddem25ynq]OUTPUTS/DELIVERABLES
4.1 The final deliverable will be a written report to MHCLG setting out the findings of the research.
4.2 The supplier will also be required to present this report at a face to face briefing with MHCLG.

5 [bookmark: h.rgqxfmww5ozz][bookmark: h.780f3iagocbk][bookmark: h.pcch80bvmgdm]KEY DATES & TENDERING PROCESS
5.1 If it is decided this service is required, it is anticipated that a procurement may start 16 May with the contract to commence 21 June. These indicative dates are for information purposes only.  MHCLG reserve the right to amend these dates at any time, and Potential Suppliers rely on them entirely at their own risk.

5.2 The contract is expected to be for a period of 4 weeks.



6 RESPONSE
6.1 Please respond by email to alicia.walker@communities.gov.uk, copied to mark.froud@communities.gov.uk with the following by 5pm (GMT) 18 April (the “Response Deadline”).

Q1 What specific skills and expertise are required in order to do this?
Q2 What does the Authority need to understand about the advertising market to be able to effectively assess bids?
Q3 Is this project deliverable in the timeframe proposed (4 weeks)? 
Q4 If not, how long do you estimate this project should last?
Q5 Is what the Authority asking for clear?
Q6 What, if anything, has the Authority missed or overlooked in setting out their requirement and what changes would you recommend?
Q7 Is there anything here that is irrelevant, outdated or unnecessary?
Q8 What would the indicative cost be for this piece of work?						
[bookmark: h.3wi3hlp2259s][bookmark: h.2bhhg4bcaksm]
7 QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS
7.1 Potential Suppliers may raise questions or seek clarification regarding any aspect of this PTME document at any time prior to the Response Deadline. Questions must be submitted by email to alicia.walker@communities.gov.uk copied to mark.froud@communities.gov.uk.

7.2 To ensure that all Potential Suppliers have equal access to information regarding this PTME exercise, responses to questions raised by Potential Suppliers will be published in a “Questions and Answers” document, which will also be circulated by email, with updates appearing at regular intervals (approximately two to three working days).  

7.3 Responses to questions will not identify the originator of the question.

7.4 If a Potential Supplier wishes to ask a question or seek clarification without the question and answer being revealed, then the Potential Supplier must state this in their email and provide its justification for withholding the question and any response. If the Authority does not consider that there is sufficient justification for withholding the question and the corresponding response, the Potential Supplier will be invited to decide whether:

7.4.1 the question/clarification and the response should in fact be published; or
7.4.2 it wishes to withdraw the question/clarification.

8 [bookmark: h.x1gzklt20ihe]GENERAL CONDITIONS
8.1 This PTME will help the Authority to refine the requirements and to understand the potential level of interest in the delivering requirements.  It will also aid Potential Supplier’s understanding of the requirements in advance of any formal competitive tender exercise.

8.2 The Authority reserves the right to change any information contained within this PTME at any time, and Potential Suppliers rely upon it entirely at their own risk.

8.3 The Authority reserves the right not to proceed with a competitive tender exercise after this PTME or to award any contract.  

8.4 Any and all costs associated with the production of such a response to this PTME must be borne by the Potential Supplier. 


8.5 No down-selection of Potential Suppliers will take place as a consequence of any responses or interactions relating to this PTME.

8.6 The Authority expects that all responses to this PTME will be provided by Potential Suppliers in good faith to the best of their ability in the light of information available at the time of their response.

8.7 No information provided by a Potential Supplier in response to this PTME will be carried forward, used or acknowledged in any way for the purpose of evaluating the Potential Supplier, in any subsequent formal procurement process.  
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